1981

Utah Hotel Company, a Utah Corporation v. R. Milton Yorgason, in his official Capacity as Salt Lake County Assessor and William E. Dunn, Robert G. Salter, William L. Hutchinson, Each In Their official Capacities As Members of the Board of Equalization For Salt Lake County : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the dismissal by the lower court of appellant's Amended Petition for an Extraordinary Writ. Appellant filed an Amended Petition seeking the issuance of an extraordinary writ to compel respondents to comply with the mandate of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) and, accordingly, roll back the 1980 Salt Lake County valuation of appellant's real property

to its 1978 level. Respondents moved to dismiss the Amended Petition.

DISPOSITION IN THE
LOWER COURT

Following oral arguments on respondents' Motion to Dismiss and on appellant's Amended Petition for issuance of an extraordinary writ, the lower court dismissed with prejudice that portion of appellant's Amended Petition which challenged the Assessor's legal capacity to revalue and assess current taxes against appellant's property at a value level other than that established for 1978. The lower court also dismissed, but without prejudice, that portion of appellant's Amended Petition subject to further administrative review. The latter portion of the ruling of the lower court is unappealable, and therefore, not raised here.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks an order reversing, as a matter of law, that portion of the lower court's judgment which interprets Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) as applying only to revaluations conducted pursuant to the now abandoned county-by-county rotation program and directing the respondents to roll back the 1980

current fair market value of appellant's real property to its 1978 level as established by the April 25, 1979 decision of the State Tax Commission. In the alternative, appellant seeks an order reversing, as a matter of law, the lower court's interpretation of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) and directing the parties to proceed before the State Tax Commission, which proceedings are presently stayed pending determination of the appeal to this Court.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Appellant is the owner of certain real property commonly known as the Hotel Utah. In 1978, the Salt Lake County Assessor estimated the fair market value of the Hotel Utah (buildings - commercial) as of January 1, 1978 to be \$11,526,475.00, with an assessed valuation of \$2,305,295.00 (Exhibit A). Appellant, objecting to such an excessive valuation, filed a protest with the Salt Lake County Board of Equalization. Upon consideration of the evidence before it, the Salt Lake County Board of Equalization granted appellant a modicum of relief, reducing the assessed value of the Hotel Utah to \$1,959,500.00 (Exhibit B). Appellant believed this modified valuation was still unrealistic and appealed the Board's decision to the State Tax Commission. An informal hearing was held before the Commission at which evidence was

taken and testimony heard. After fully considering the matter and recognizing the exaggerated assessment of appellant's property by respondents, the State Tax Commission rendered a decision on April 25, 1979, slashing the assessed value of the Hotel Utah as of January 1, 1978 to \$1,228,985.00 - a reduction of almost 50% from the original assessment by the Salt Lake County Assessor (Exhibit C). Respondents did not pursue their right to challenge the April 25, 1979 decision by either requesting a formal hearing before the State Tax Commission or by filing an appeal with this Court. The time having lapsed to so challenge the decision, that decision is now final and binding, pursuant to the provisions of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-75(Supp. 1979) and Utah Code Ann. §59-7-10(1)

In 1979, the Utah legislature enacted Utah Code Ann. §59-5-10 (Supp. 1979) which provides:

Taxable real properties revalued, as provided in this chapter, after January 1, 1978, shall be appraised at current fair market value and the value shall be rolled back to the January 1, 1978, level.

In the time since the final decision by the State Tax Commission as to the Hotel Utah's January 1, 1978 valuation, there have been no material changes in the nature or value of appellant's property. Notwithstanding this, in 1980 the Salt Lake County Assessor reassessed appellant's property at an estimated fair market value of \$11,526,475.00 with an assessed valuation of \$2,305,295.00, --

the exact figure it had originally assessed appellant's property at in 1978 (Exhibit D). And, disregarding the express provisions of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979), the county assessor failed to roll back the valuation of appellant's property to its January 1, 1978 level, as set by the State Tax Commission in its decision of April 25, 1979.

Believing the 1980 assessment to be contrary to law, appellant filed an objection and protest on June 11, 1980 with the Salt Lake County Board of Equalization, again seeking relief from this excessive assessed valuation. Appellant contended that the 1978 valuation level of its property had been conclusively established and finally determined by the State Tax Commission in its April 25, 1979 decision, and, as a matter of law, the Assessor was required to observe that valuation.

The Salt Lake County Board of Equalization, on or about September 24, 1980, denied appellant's request for readjustment of the assessed valuation on its property (Exhibit E). Appellant thereafter filed an appeal with the State Tax Commission, contesting this denial. These administrative proceedings have been stayed pending the determination of this appeal.

In light of the failure of the Salt Lake County Board of Equalization to comply with the provisions of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979), appellant brought a Petition for the

issuance of an extraordinary writ, seeking a judicial directive, ordering respondents to comply with that statute and roll back appellant's real property valuation to the January 1, 1978 level, as determined by the State Tax Commission in its April 25, 1979 decision.

The lower court dismissed with prejudice that portion of appellant's Amended Petition which challenged the county assessor's legal capacity to revalue and assess taxes against appellant's real property at a level other than that established as the January 1, 1978 level. The lower court dismissed without prejudice that portion of appellant's Amended Petition which it determined was subject to further administrative review.

ARGUMENT

POINT I THE LOWER COURT'S INTERPRETATION OF UTAH CODE ANNOTATED §59-5-109(2) (SUPP. 1979) IS ERRONEOUS, AS A MATTER OF LAW

A. A Statute Must be Given its Plain and Obvious Meaning

The foremost rule of statutory construction is that a court must look first to the actual and literal wording of a statute to determine its meaning. This Court has consistently adhered to the principle that "when the language of a statute is plain and unambiguous and conveys a clear and definite meaning, . . . the statute must be given its plain and obvious meaning." Salt

Lake Union Stock Yards v. State Tax Commission, 93 Utah 166, 71 P.2d 538, 540 (1937).

In interpreting statutes, it is the court's primary responsibility to give effect to the legislative intent within the framework of the language used. As explained in Gord v. Salt Lake City, 20 Utah 2d. 138, 434 P.2d 449 (1967):

The enactment of the statute . . . is the legislative prerogative. It carries with it the presumptions that it is valid, and that the words and phrases were chose advisedly to express the legislative intent. The statute should not be stricken down nor applied other than in accordance with its literal wording unless it is so unclear or confused as to be wholly beyond reason, or inoperable, or it contravenes some basic constitutional right.

If it meets these tests it is not the court's prerogative to consider its wisdom, or its effectiveness, nor even the reasonableness or orderliness of the procedure set forth, but it has a duty to let it operate as the legislature has provided.

Id. at 451 (emphasis added). Accord, Millet v. Clark Clinic Corp., 609 P.2d 934 (Utah 1980); Grant v. State Land Board, 26 Utah 2d 100, 485 P.2d 1035 (1971); Canada Dry Bottling Co. v. Board of Review, 223 P.2d 586 (Utah, 1950).

B. Utah Code Annotated §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) is Clear and Unambiguous on its Face.

Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) simply provides:

Taxable real properties revalued, as provided in this chapter, after January 1, 1978, shall be appraised at current fair market value and the value shall be rolled back to the January 1, 1978, level.

The actual and literal wording of this statute requires that when taxable real property is revalued after January 1, 1978 in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 5, Title 59 of Utah Code Annotated, the current fair market value of the property as appraised by the county assessor must be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level. The application of this statute is plainly not discretionary.

This statute conveys a clear and definite mandate which must be applied as the legislature intended. The language chosen by the legislature is neither wholly unreasonable nor inoperable; rather, it simply creates a duty of performance. The wisdom, reasonableness or effectiveness of this statute cannot be second-guessed or arbitrarily applied, contrary to its plain and obvious meaning.

C. The Legislative History of Utah Code Annotated §59-5-109 (Supp. 1979) Affirms the Obvious Purpose of the Statute.

Senator Warren E. Pugh, one of the sponsors of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109 (Supp. 1979) explained in the 1979 Senate debates the purpose and intent of this legislation. He stated:

Senate Bill 190 is an attempt to take out the bad effects of inflation in our local property assessment program [W]hat it does is freeze the property assessment as of January 1, 1978 As you can see, the effect of that is to take out the inflationary factor that has crept into our assessment policy over the past few years and freeze that assessment as of January 1, 1978.

Senate Debate on Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109 (Supp. 1979), February 9, 1979, Disk No. 128 (emphasis added).

Representative Bangerter, representing the sponsors of this legislation in the House of Representatives, stated that while the effect of freezing real property valuations at their January 1, 1978 level was to eliminate the negative impact of inflation, it would not forever stagnate tax revenues at this 1978 level. He explained:

I think [counties] still have the latitude to get the money they need to fund their programs, but this would mandate that it would have to be done by mill levy increase and not by raising their assessed value

House Debate on Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109 (Supp. 1979), March 5, 1979, Disk No. 8 (emphasis added).

Representative Lorin E. Pace described the purpose of the Senate Bill 190 as follows:

Mr. Speaker, I think that voting for this bill will allow us to obtain some type of stability for the next three years; at which time we will have to develop a system for assessing values in the State consistent with the growth and new values of real property and [this bill] would allow us to finally bring the assessment levels of all counties together to a consistent percentage.

Id. (emphasis added).

It is apparent from these legislative comments that the intent of the statute was to freeze property values at their January 1, 1978 level -- a constant value which would not be distorted by inflation.

D. The Interpretation of Utah Code Annotated §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) by the Lower Court is in Direct Contradiction to the Plain Language of the Statute and its Legislative History.

Despite the unequivocal language of Utah Code Ann. 59-5-109 (Supp. 1979), the lower court ruled in part as follows:

Utah Code Annotated 59-5-109(2) (1953, as amended 1979) was passed by the Utah State Legislature specifically for the purpose of equalizing values between and among the various counties of the State of Utah, and does not preclude the assessor of each county from valuing properties within the county on an annual basis as of January 1 of each year and assessing current property taxes against those properties

Record at 144 (emphasis added).

1. The lower court misconstrued the purpose of Utah Code Annotated §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) as limited to equalizing values between and among counties.

As previously quoted, section 109(2) of Chapter 5, Title 59 Utah Code Annotated (Supp. 1979) simply requires:

Taxable real properties revalued as provided in this chapter, after January 1, 1978, shall be appraised at current fair market value and the value shall be rolled back to the January 1, 1978, level.

(Emphasis added).

The lower court's interpretation ignores the specific direction of Section 59-5-109(2) requiring taxable real property to be revalued in accordance with "this chapter" -- that is, Chapter 5 of Title 59, entitled "Assessment of Property." Contrary to the plain language of the statute itself, the lower court sought to

limit the application of subsection 2 to the now defunct county-by-county revaluation program conducted by the State Tax Commission under the provisions of subsection 1 of Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109 (Supp. 1979). ^{1/} The requirement that current fair market values be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level was, of course, applicable to properties revalued pursuant to the county-by-county rotation plan inasmuch as such revaluations were conducted in accordance with Chapter 5 of Title 59. However, if subsection 2 of §59-5-109 was intended to apply exclusively to the county-by-county revaluation program, the legislature, in its wisdom, surely would have chosen language which unequivocally restricted the application of subsection 2 to the county-by-county rotation program outlined in subsection 1, or, at the very least, would have limited the application of subsection 2 to the confines of

^{1/} Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(1) (Supp. 1979) provides:

(1) The state tax commission shall administer and supervise a program for the revaluation of all taxable real property in each county. A comprehensive written plan or rotation shall be promulgated by the state tax commission fixing the order of rotation as between counties upon the basis of the disparities therein between real property assessed values and real property fair cash values as determined by the state tax commission, with revaluation to take place first in those counties where the greatest disparities exist. Such plan of rotation as promulgated shall thereafter be followed, except as it may be amended by the state tax commission from time to time for good cause. The state tax commission shall furnish a copy of said plan and all amendments thereto to each county assessor and the board of county commissioners in each county. A copy of such plan and all amendments thereto, together with a real property revaluation progress report shall be submitted to the legislature on the first day of each general session thereof.

section 109 itself. But the legislature did not so limit subsection §59-5-109(2). Instead it affirmatively made the provisions of that subsection applicable to all taxable real property revalued in accordance with any of the provisions of Chapter 5, Title 59.

Further reinforcing its intent that real property values be frozen at the January 1, 1978 level, the legislature also required that the current fair market value of all new properties added to the tax rolls after 1978 be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level. 2/

If Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(Supp. 1979) is applied as the legislature had intended the value of properties reappraised on a county-wide basis pursuant to subsection 1 would be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level; and the value of new properties added to the tax rolls after a county-wide reappraisal would be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level in accordance with Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(3) (Supp. 1979). Thus, appraisals under subsections 1 and 3 of the statute result in property values being

2/ Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(3) (Supp. 1979) provides:

(3) All properties added to the tax rolls after January 1, 1978, in counties reappraised by the tax commission on or after January 1, 1978, shall be appraised at fair market value and their values shall be rolled back to the January 1, 1978, level as indicated by the amount of inflation as determined by the commission which has taken place between January 1, 1978, and the date of reappraisal.

frozen at the January 1, 1978 level, creating a stable and constant value level throughout the State which is not distorted by inflation.

However, contrary to the intent of the legislature, the lower court's restrictive interpretation of subsection 2 of §59-5-109 would permit a county assessor to reappraise individual properties on an annual basis at their current fair market value without rolling back the value to the January 1, 1978 level. These reappraisals by a county assessor at current fair market values, absent a roll back, effectively reintroduce the negative impact of inflation on property values and totally defeat the legislature's attempt at stabilizing values among properties throughout the State. Furthermore, with this exception to the requirement that property values be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level, a county assessor can arbitrarily and without cause reappraise a parcel of property, such as that of appellant, and assess taxes against that property based upon the current fair market value, while continuing to assess taxes against an adjacent parcel of property based upon the January 1, 1978 value level. Plainly, the property owner whose property is valued at its current fair market value bears a disproportionate share of the tax burden. Such a result is obviously contrary to the legislature's intent and not in the best interests of the public.

2. The lower court erred in ruling that the county assessor is not required to roll back the current fair market values of revalued real property to the January 1, 1978 level.

Subsection 2 of §59-5-109 does not preclude the revaluation of properties within a county (other than pursuant to the county-county valuation program) but rather implicitly recognizes the statutory obligation of county assessors to revalue property on an on-going basis. This statute nevertheless requires that when properties are so revalued, the current fair market value must be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level.

For example, under Utah Code Ann. §59-5-4 (Supp. 1979), a county assessor is statutorily required to assess all taxable property in the county before April 15th of each year. Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(2) (Supp. 1979) applies to such revaluations since they are provided for in Chapter 5, Title 59. Accordingly, when an assessor conducts his annual appraisal of real property, he is statutorily obligated to roll back the current fair market value of that property to the January 1, 1978 level.

The lower court's ruling that a county assessor can revalue property on an annual basis and assess current property taxes against such property, without first rolling back the property value to its January 1, 1978 level, is without doubt in direct contradiction to the actual language of §59-5-109(2) and, would preclude any meaningful application of that statute.

E. The 1981 Utah State Legislature Reaffirmed the Requirement that the Current Fair Market Value of Properties be Rolled Back to the January 1, 1978 Level.

After the lower court's judgment was rendered, the 1981 Utah State Legislature reaffirmed its intent that the current fair market value of revalued real properties be rolled back to the January 1, 1978 level by adopting House Bill 196, which repealed and reenacted Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109(1981). Although not in effect on the date appellant's property was appraised, an examination of this subsequent legislation is proper in determining the effect the legislature intended the original bill to have. The United States Supreme Court, citing an earlier ruling, noted in Erlenbaugh v. United States, 409 U.S. 239, 34 L.Ed. 2d. 446 (1972), that "a 'later act can be regarded as a legislative interpretation of [an] earlier act . . . in the sense that it aids in ascertaining the meaning of the words as used in their contemporary setting,' and 'is therefore entitled to great weight in resolving any ambiguities and doubts.'" 34 L.Ed. 2d at 451.

In enacting House Bill 196, the 1981 legislature completely abandoned the county-by-county rotation plan of revaluation previously set forth in subsection 1 of §59-5-109(Supp. 1979). As reenacted in 1981, Utah Code Ann. §59-5-109 provides in full as follows:

All locally assessed taxable real property shall be appraised at current fair market value and the value of such property rolled back to its January 1, 1978, level as such level is determined by the state tax commission.

The reenactment of Section 109 unequivocally reaffirms the legislature's intent that the value of all real property in the State of Utah be frozen at the January 1, 1978 level so as to attain a stability and uniformity of real property values and minimize the impact of inflation.

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