1981

Utah Hotel Company, a Utah Corporation v. R. Milton Yorgason, in his official Capacity as Salt Lake County Assessor and William E. Dunn, Robert G. Salter, William L. Hutchinson, Each In Their official Capacities As Members of the Board of Equalization For Salt Lake County : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COUNTY ASSESSOR IS REQUIRED BY LAW TO VALUE ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COUNTY AT ITS VALUE AS OF THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY OF EACH YEAR.

Section 59-5-4, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, was first enacted in 1898. That statute has been in effect for more than 82 years. While there have been some modifications of the 1898 statute, the language relative to the assessor's duty concerning annual valuation has remained unchanged since the original enactment.

In said statute, the assessor's annual statutory duty is to:

"...ascertain the names of all taxable inhabitants and all property in the county subject to taxation except such as is required to be assessed by the State Tax Commission and must assess such property to the person by whom it was owned or claimed, or in whose possession or control it was, at 12 o'clock m. of the 1st day of January next preceeding, and at its value on that date;..." (Emphasis supplied.) Section 59-5-4, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended.

The same statute further charges assessors with the duty to:

"...become fully acquainted with all property in their respective counties, and are required to visit each separate district or precinct either in person or by deputy, annually, and in person or by deputy annually to inspect the property they are required to assess..." (Emphasis supplied.)

The above and foregoing language was in the statute 71 years prior to the time that the section relied upon by the Appellant, was enacted. Similarly, the above statute was reaffirmed by the 1981 legislature. See Sections 59-5-4 and 59-5-109, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended.

Respondent has found no Utah case interpreting the underlined portion of the annual valuation statute cited above. Perhaps the language of the statute relative to annual valuation is so clear in its expressed terms, that no need for interpretation exists. The Supreme Court of Arizona, confronting similar statutory language had this to say:

"...since the full cash value of all property shall be determined yearly, the statute contemplates that valuations may change from time to time and that county assessors are directed to make these changes yearly as circumstances demand. Security Properties v. Arizona Department of Property Valuation, 537 P. 2d 924 (Ariz. 1975) at page 926. (Emphasis supplied.)"

The Court in reaching its decision in the above case referred to the case of Transamerica Development Co. v. County of Maricopa, 489 P. 2d 33 (Ariz. 1971) wherein a statement was made that should dispose of this case:

"While there may be some evidentiary value in previous valuation for purposes of arriving at full cash value, the assessment must be considered on a year-to-year basis, and the previous year's valuation is not controlling." 489 P.2d at 36. (Emphasis supplied.)

Appellant, in the instant case wants this Court to foreclose any possible inquiry into Appellant's current value. It wants previous year's values to be controlling. It wants this Court to say: 1978 equals 1980--end of inquiry. Why is this so? Appellant wants to force Salt Lake County to accept in perpetuity a 1978 decision of the Tax Commission after an informal conference. Respondents don't even know why the Tax Commission reduced the Appellant's value for that year. A review of the Tax Commission's decisions affecting Appellant's property makes reference to "...taxation purposes for the year 1978." (T-24-25). The decisions of the Tax Commission do not say for all subsequent years. The decisions of the Tax Commission do not say for the year 1980. They are specifically limited to 1978. Further reference to those decisions will show that one decision was reached "...in lieu of an informal hearing..." (T-24) No explanation for the adjustment is given. No findings are made. No specific evidence is cited. In fact, Salt Lake County, after learning of the extent of the adjustment made to Appellant's property, endeavored to learn the basis for the decision. One indication is that the income approach to valuation was used and

since the Hotel Utah had finished a multi-million dollar expansion project during the year 1978, it was not up to full occupancy. A discounted rate of occupancy was purportedly given. However, by 1980 the Hotel was considered to be at full or near full capacity, contrary to the situation in 1978, thereby necessitating a removal of the discount and corresponding increase in value. (T-124).

The situation confronting Salt Lake County in 1978 was similar to what was confronting Maricopa County Arizona in Security Properties v. Arizona Department of Property Valuation, Supra. The Assessor in that case testified that they "...were attempting to correct errors," meaning the errors which had occurred in the statewide revaluation program..." 537 P. 2d at page 926. Salt Lake County was revalued in 1978. Over 200,000 separate parcels of property existed at that time. There were over 8,000 appeals during the year. Obviously the County could not ascertain the accuracy of all assessments during that year. In 1980 when the assessor learned of the apparent discrepancy in the current value of the Hotel Utah property, he undertook to correct it. Not only is this good assessment practice, but it is action that was contemplated by the legislature of this state when it enacted Section 59-11-3, Utah Code

Annotated, 1953, as amended, which provides:

"Omissions, errors or defects in form in the Assessment book, when it can be ascertained therefrom what was intended, may, with the consent of the county commissioners, be supplied or corrected by the Assessor at anytime prior to sale for delinquent taxes and after the original assessment was made."

In addition, the assessor must certify under oath that he has allowed no one to escape a "...just and equal assessment..." See 59-5-30 Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. If he permits underassessment to occur, he and his sureties are subject to suit by the county attorney. Section 59-5-35, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. And, the value of property underassessed being shown requires a judgment to be entered for the amount of uncollected taxes. See Section 59-5-36, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended.

A reasonable review of the above statutes clearly demonstrates an intention on the part of the legislature to impose an affirmative duty upon each assessor to vigilantly maintain correct values on the assessment rolls. He has no choice. See also, Baker v. Tax Commission, 520 P. 2d 203 (Utah, 1974). Tax year 1980 is not tax year 1978. Facts change. Conditions change. Circumstances change. As was stated by the Supreme Court of Oregon:

"...The interval between the transaction in the subject property sought to be introduced and the assessment date may be so great that it can be said as a matter of law that there was a change in conditions. However, where this determination cannot be made as a matter of law, reference must be made to the underlying conditions affecting value before such evidence can be rejected." Sabin v. Department of Revenue, 528 P. 2d 69 (Oregon, 1974) at page 71. In that case, the Plaintiff's value

In that case, the Plaintiff's value had risen dramatically. The area in which it was located had changed from low density suburban commercial area to the site of two shopping centers. Plaintiff contested the current value asserting that the 1969 purchase price he paid for the subject property was controlling for the year 1971. The Court rejected his argument, reasoning:

"...The evidence was conclusive that prices in the area of the subject property rose dramatically between 1969 and the assessment date because of a fundamental change in the use of the land in the area. This rapid change in the basic condition affecting value rendered the 1969 purchase sufficiently remote to warrant its rejection."

The Hotel Utah property, in part, is across the street from the Crossroads Shopping Mall. The Mall was not there in 1978. It was there in 1980. Did it have any affect on values? Certainly it should be a factor in Appellant's 1980 valuation. In Sabin, supra., the Court rejected a purchase of the subject property as fixing the value because it occurred two years prior to the current

assessment date. This Court should also reject Appellant's 1978 value as being the 1980 value. Particularly is this required when, as in this case, there is absolutely no evidence to controvert the assessor's 1980 valuation as affirmed by the Salt Lake County Board of Equalization. There is no factual basis upon which this Court could justify judicial intervention into the area of taxation. A mere difference of opinion as to the method to be used in computing valuation does not justify intervention. Pima County v. Cypress-Pima Mining Co., 579 P. 2d 1081 (Ariz. 1978). See also Caldwell v. Department of Revenue, 596 P. 2d 45 (Ariz. 1979) where the Arizona Court of Appeals upheld an assessment based upon the statutory presumption that an assessment is correct and lawful in the absence of sufficient evidence to establish a different value.

Some cases go so far as to say that a person challenging an assessment procedure must show systematic and intentional conduct deliberately creating inequality before judicial intervention will be allowed. See Xerox Corp. v. ADA County Assessor, 609 P. 2d 1129 (Idaho, 1980).

Section 59-5-4, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended and the other statutes cited above clearly establish the obligation on the part of the assessor to value property as

of January 1 of each year. This will insure that all properties are valued on an annual basis and thereby carry out the constitutional mandate of uniformity. The applicable statutes support this principle. The case law cited above also support this position. The trial court's ruling currently insures that these principles will be followed. Appellant's should not be allowed to preclude inquiry into the value of its property for the year 1980 or any other year that inquiry is justified. The decision of the Trial Court was correct and should be affirmed.

POINT II

SECTION 59-5-109, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED, 1953, AS AMENDED, 1979, APPLIES TO THE STATE-WIDE RE-APPRAISAL PROGRAM AND NOT AS A RESTRICTION OR LIMITATION UPON THE ASSESSOR'S ANNUAL DUTY TO APPRAISE PROPERTY AS OF JANUARY 1, 12:00 NOON.

Appellant, Hotel Utah's entire case is based upon two misconceptions.

The first misconception is that the law governing the manner in which the Tax Commission administers the re-appraisal program for the entire State of Utah affects the myriad of statutes dealing with the assessment of property within each county.

The second misconception that the appellant has is

that the word "valuation" as used in the various assessment statutes means the same as the word "level".

Reviewing the title of Section 59-5-109, Utah Code Annotated, as amended, 1979, reveals that the statute addresses the following subject: Revaluation of property--Tax commission to administer--Procedure--State-county agreements--Record systems--Programs to be successive--Apportionment of expense--Reimbursement by counties--Disposition.

As can be seen by the various subjects set forth in the heading of the statute, that statute covers the administration of the state-wide, county by county, cyclical reappraisal program set up by the State Legislature in 1969. See Harmer v. State Tax Commission, 452 P. 2d 876 (Utah, 1969) relating to the same duty under earlier statutes.

The statute is located in the section of the Tax Code under the heading "Administration of Property Tax Assessments." Subsection 2 of that statute, the one relied upon by Appellant speaks in terms of "taxable real properties revalued, as provided in this chapter...." And, subsection 3 also relied upon by Appellant reads in part as follows: "All properties added to the tax rolls after January 1, 1978, in counties reappraised by the Tax

Commission on or after January 1, 1978...." (Emphasis supplied.)

As can be seen from both provisions, the statute relates to the situation wherein the State Tax Commission of Utah is conducting its reappraisal program. The statute and the subsections referred to above in no way relate to the annual duty of the various assessors in the various counties to assess property at its value as of January 1, 12:00 Noon to its owner. If the Legislature had intended the reappraisal statute to so apply, it would have amended the various statutes set forth in Argument I of Respondents brief. However, rather than amend out the annual appraisal obligation it, in fact, reaffirmed that obligation in 1981 when it amended 59-5-4 and left in the annual valuation requirement. See 59-5-4, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, 1981. As this Court has stated on previous occasions:

"...one of the fundamental rules of statutory construction is that the statute should be looked at as a whole and in the light of the general purpose it was intended to serve; and, should be so interpreted and applied as to accomplish that objective. In order to give the statute the implementation which will fulfill its purpose, reason and intention sometimes prevail over technically applied literalness." Andrus v. Allred, 404 P. 2d 972 (Utah, 1965) at P. 974.

Applying this principle of statutory construction to the statute relied upon by Appellant as limiting the assessor's authority, will clearly demonstrate to this Court that the limitations relied upon by the appellant apply to the situation when the State Tax Commission is reappraising an entire county and relates to the equalization process among the several counties of the State of Utah and, in no way relates to the processes within each respective county. It allows county-wide adjustment so that one county is not paying another county's share of the tax.

Appellant, in their brief, equates the phrase "assessment level" with the word "valuation". Respondent would respectfully submit that the words do not have the same meaning. The Legislature has defined "value" in Section 59-3-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, subsection (5) which reads as follows: "Value" and "full cash value" mean the amount at which the property would be taken in payment of a just debt due from a solvent debtor. That is what is meant by value as it relates to property taxation. While it is admitted that there is no statutory definition of "assessment level," respondent would assert that the phrase "assessment level" relates to reappraisal and results from the sales ratio studies conducted on an annual

basis by the State Tax Commission of Utah to ascertain the correlation between assessed value and actual market value within the various counties and to then determine the assessment level of each county as they relate to market value and as they relate to each other. Again, the concept of assessment level addresses the question of equalization among the various counties, as implemented by the State Tax Commission, and in no way relates to individual properties within each county and the appraisal thereof by the County Assessor. The phrase, "level of assessment" then relates more to a class or grouping of properties rather than individual properties as is involved in the instant case. See Security Properties v. Arizona Department of Property Valuation, 537 P. 2d 924 (Ariz. 1975).

It is therefore respectfully submitted that the Appellant's reliance upon Section 59-5-109 as limiting the Assessor's ability to correct a previously underassessed property is not justified. The statute in question relates only to the reappraisal program conducted by the State Tax Commission of Utah and not to the individual valuation duty imposed upon the Assessor. That this misplaced reliance results, in part, from a failure to recognize that the words "value" and "assessed value" have a different meaning than

the word "assessment level." And, even assuming arguendo that the Plaintiff-Appellant's interpretation were correct, a current valuation rolled back to 1978 may very well result in a different valuation than the 1978 value. There are other factors that can affect the market place relating to the value of a particular property other than inflation. Such as the addition of a new shopping mall or restrictions on the ability to build any more high-rise hotels or, the availability of competitive financing. All of these factors could have an affect upon the value of a property in 1980 which, when rolled back to the 1978 value to remove the affects of inflation, could result in a substantially different value than the value was, in fact, in 1980. Therefore, under no circumstance could an argument be made that the 1980 value, even rolled back, would necessarily be the same as the 1978 value. Since the only evidence before the Trial Court for the year 1980 is the county's valuation, this Court should sustain that Court's decision.

CONCLUSION

Respondent, Salt Lake County, respectfully submits that the Trial Court correctly applied the law applicable to this case and upheld the statutory duty of the County

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